THE INFORMATION IN THIS STATEMENT OF ADDITIONAL INFORMATION IS NOT COMPLETE AND MAY BE CHANGED. WE MAY NOT SELL THESE SECURITIES UNTIL THE REGISTRATION STATEMENT FILED WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION IS EFFECTIVE. THIS STATEMENT OF ADDITIONAL INFORMATION IS NOT AN OFFER TO SELL THESE SECURITIES AND IS NOT SOLICITING AN OFFER TO BUY THESE SECURITIES IN ANY JURISDICTION WHERE THE OFFER OR SALE IS NOT PERMITTED.

SUBJECT TO COMPLETION, DATED JUNE 30, 2025

THE GLENMEDE FUND, INC.

(800) 442-8299

STATEMENT OF ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

[•], 2025

This Statement of Additional Information ("SAI") is not a prospectus but should be read in conjunction with The Glenmede Fund, Inc.'s ("Glenmede Fund" or the "Fund") Prospectus dated [•], 2025, as amended or supplemented from time to time (the "Prospectus"). This SAI is for the SMID Core Equity Portfolio (formerly, Women in Leadership U.S. Equity Portfolio) (Advisor Shares (GTLOX) and Institutional Shares ([•])) (the "Portfolio"). No investment in shares of the Portfolio should be made without first reading the Prospectus of the Portfolio. This SAI is incorporated by reference in its entirety into the Prospectus. The Fund's audited financial statements and financial highlights appearing in the <u>2024 Annual Financial Statements</u> are incorporated by reference into this SAI. No other parts of the Annual Financial Statements is incorporated by reference in this SAI. No other parts of the 2025 Semi-Annual Financial Statements], are incorporated by reference in this SAI. No other parts of the 2025 Semi-Annual Financial Statements are incorporated by reference in this SAI. No other parts of the 2025 Semi-Annual Financial Statements are incorporated by reference in this SAI. No other parts of the 2025 Semi-Annual Financial Statements are incorporated by reference in this SAI. No other parts of the 2025 Semi-Annual Financial Statements are incorporated by reference in this SAI. No other parts of the 2025 Semi-Annual Financial Statements are incorporated by reference in this SAI. No other parts of the 2025 Semi-Annual Financial Statements are incorporated herein. A copy of the Fund's Prospectus, Annual Financial Statements and Semi-Annual Financial Statements are available without charge, upon request, by calling the Fund at the above telephone number.

Capitalized terms used in this SAI and not otherwise defined have the same meanings given to them in the Fund's Prospectus.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

THE FUND	3
INVESTMENT STRATEGIES	3
COMMON INVESTMENT POLICIES AND RISKS	3
PRICE OF PORTFOLIO SHARES	11
PURCHASE OF SHARES	11
REDEMPTION OF SHARES	12
PORTFOLIO TURNOVER	12
DISCLOSURE OF PORTFOLIO HOLDINGS	12
INVESTMENT LIMITATIONS	13
MANAGEMENT OF THE FUND	15
INVESTMENT ADVISORY AND OTHER SERVICES	22
PORTFOLIO TRANSACTIONS	27
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION CONCERNING TAXES	27
GENERAL INFORMATION	29
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	30
OTHER INFORMATION	31

THE FUND

The Glenmede Fund was organized as a Maryland corporation on June 30, 1988. The Glenmede Fund's Articles of Incorporation, as amended, authorize its Board of Directors (the "Board" and the members thereof, "Directors") to issue 6,000,000,000 shares of common stock, with a \$.001 par value. The Board has the power to subdivide these shares into one or more investment portfolios from time to time. The Board also has the power to designate separate classes of shares within the same Portfolio. As of the date hereof, the Glenmede Fund is offering shares of 14 Portfolios: Equity Income Portfolio, Global Secured Options Portfolio (Advisor Shares and Institutional Shares), Disciplined U.S. Equity Portfolio (Advisor Shares and Institutional Shares), Disciplined U.S. Growth Equity Portfolio (Advisor Shares and Institutional Shares), Long/Short Equity Portfolio (Advisor Shares and Institutional Shares), Disciplined U.S. Small Cap Equity Portfolio (Advisor Shares and Institutional Shares), Disciplined U.S. Small Cap Equity Portfolio (Advisor Shares and Institutional Shares), Disciplined U.S. Small Cap Equity Portfolio (Advisor Shares and Institutional Shares), Disciplined U.S. Small Cap Equity Portfolio (Advisor Shares and Institutional Shares), Disciplined U.S. Small Cap Equity Portfolio (Advisor Shares and Institutional Shares), Disciplined U.S. Small Cap Equity Portfolio (Advisor Shares and Institutional Shares), Small Cap Equity Portfolio (Advisor Shares and Institutional Shares), Small Cap Equity Portfolio (Advisor Shares and Institutional Shares), Strategic Equity Portfolio, Total Market Plus Equity Portfolio and SMID Core Equity Portfolio (formerly, the Women in Leadership U.S. Equity Portfolio) (Advisor Shares and Institutional Shares). This SAI relates to the SMID Core Equity Portfolio only.

The Fund is an open-end, management investment company and each Portfolio of the Glenmede Fund is "diversified" as defined in Section 5(b) the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended (the "1940 Act").

INVESTMENT STRATEGIES

The following investment strategies supplement those set forth in the Fund's Prospectus. Unless specified below and except as described under "Investment Limitations," the following investment strategies are not fundamental and the Board may change such strategies without shareholder approval.

SMID Core Equity Portfolio

From time to time, Glenmede Investment Management LP ("GIM" or the "Advisor") may revise its equity computer model programs to try to maintain or enhance the Portfolio's performance.

The SMID Core Equity Portfolio intends to remain, for the most part, fully invested in equity securities which may include, as a non-principal investment, American Depositary Receipts ("ADRs") listed on the New York Stock Exchange ("NYSE").

The SMID Core Equity Portfolio will not engage in "market timing" transactions. However, for temporary defensive purposes, the Portfolio may invest a portion of its assets (up to 20%) in short- term money market instruments issued by U.S. or foreign issuers, denominated in dollars or any foreign currency, including short-term certificates of deposit (including variable rate certificates of deposit), time deposits with a maturity no greater than 180 days, bankers' acceptances, commercial paper rated A-1 by S&P Global Ratings ("S&P") or Prime-1 by Moody's Investors Service, Inc. ("Moody's"), or in similar money market securities.

COMMON INVESTMENT POLICIES AND RISKS

Borrowing

As a temporary measure for extraordinary or emergency purposes, the Portfolio may borrow money from banks in amounts not exceeding one-third of total assets. The Portfolio will not borrow money for speculative purposes. If the market value of the Portfolio's securities should decline, the Portfolio may experience difficulty in repaying the borrowing.

As required by the 1940 Act, the Portfolio must maintain continuous asset coverage (total assets, including assets acquired with borrowed funds, less liabilities exclusive of borrowings) of 300% of all amounts borrowed. If, at any time, the value of the Portfolio's assets should fail to meet this 300% coverage test, the Portfolio, within three days (not including Sundays and holidays), will reduce the amount of its borrowings to the extent necessary to meet this 300% coverage. Maintenance of this percentage limitation may result in the sale of portfolio securities at a time when investment considerations otherwise indicate that it would be disadvantageous to do so. Borrowing of securities in connection with

short sales and derivative transactions such as options, futures and swaps are not subject to this limitation. The Portfolio is authorized to pledge portfolio securities to the lender as collateral in connection with any borrowings. Reverse repurchase agreements constitute borrowings, and leverage is a related risk.

Moreover, interest costs on borrowings may fluctuate with changing market rates of interest and may partially offset or exceed the returns on the borrowed funds. Unless profits on assets acquired with borrowed funds exceed the costs of borrowing, the use of borrowing will diminish the investment performance of the Portfolio. Under adverse conditions, the Portfolio may have to sell portfolio securities to meet interest or principal payments at a time investment considerations would not favor such sales. The Portfolio may lose money as a result of its borrowing activities. Lastly, the interests of persons with whom the Portfolio enters into leverage arrangements will not necessarily be aligned with the interests of such Portfolio's shareholders and such persons will have claims on the Portfolio's assets that are senior to those of the Portfolio's shareholders.

Credit Risks

Because the Portfolio may invest in fixed-income securities, it is subject to "credit risk" — the risk that an issuer will be unable or unwilling to make principal and interest payments when due. U.S. Government securities are generally considered to be the safest type of investment in terms of credit risk. Municipal obligations generally rank between U.S. Government securities and corporate debt securities in terms of credit safety. Corporate debt securities, particularly those rated below investment grade, may present the highest credit risk.

Depositary Receipts

The Portfolio may invest in ADRs. Depositary receipts are receipts, typically issued by a bank or trust company, which evidence ownership of underlying securities issued by a foreign corporation. ADRs are depositary receipts issued in registered form by a U.S. bank or trust company evidencing ownership of underlying securities issued by a foreign company. ADRs may be listed on a national securities exchange or may be traded in the over-the-counter ("OTC") market. ADR prices are denominated in U.S. dollars although the underlying securities are denominated in a foreign currency.

Generally, depositary receipts in registered form are designed for use in the U.S. securities market and depositary receipts in bearer form are designed for use in securities markets outside the United States. Depositary receipts may not necessarily be denominated in the same currency as the underlying securities into which they may be converted.

Investments in ADRs involve risks similar to those accompanying direct investments in foreign securities.

Exchange-Traded Funds

The Portfolio may invest in shares of registered open-end or closed-end investment companies, including exchangetraded funds ("ETFs"). Some ETFs seek to track the performance of a particular market index, and are a type of index fund bought and sold on a securities exchange. These indices include not only broad-market indices but more narrowly-based indices as well, including those relating to particular sectors, markets, regions or industries. ETF and listed closed-end fund shares are traded like traditional equity securities on a national securities exchange or NASDAQ National Market System. The Portfolio may purchase ETF shares as a way of gaining exposure to the segments of the equity or fixed-income markets represented by the ETF's portfolio instead of buying those portfolio securities directly. ETF shares enjoy several advantages over futures. Depending on the market, the holding period, and other factors, ETF shares can be less costly than futures. In addition, ETF shares can be purchased for smaller sums and offer exposure to market sectors and styles for which there is no suitable or liquid futures contract. Because most ETFs are investment companies, the Portfolio's purchase of ETF shares generally are subject to the percentage limitations and risks described below under "*Investment Company Securities.*"

An investment in an ETF or a closed-end fund generally presents the same primary risks as an investment in a conventional open-end fund (*i.e.*, one that is not exchange traded) that has the same investment objectives, strategies, and policies. The price of an ETF or a closed-end fund can fluctuate within a wide range, and the Portfolio could lose money investing in such a fund if the prices of the stocks owned by it go down. In addition, ETFs and listed closed-end funds are subject to the following risks that do not apply to conventional open-end funds: (i) the market price of their shares may trade

at a discount to their net asset value ("NAV"); (ii) an active trading market for their shares may not develop or be maintained; or (iii) trading of their shares may be halted if the listing exchange's officials deem such action appropriate, the shares are delisted from the exchange, or the activation of market-wide "circuit breakers" (which are tied to large decreases in stock prices) halts stock trading generally.

Fixed-Income Securities

The Portfolio may invest in fixed-income securities, which are used by issuers to borrow money. Bonds, notes, debentures, asset-backed securities (including those backed by mortgages), and loan participations and assignments are common types of debt securities. Generally, issuers pay investors periodic interest and repay the amount borrowed either periodically during the life of the security and/or at maturity. Some debt securities, such as zero coupon bonds, do not pay current interest, but are purchased at a discount from their face values and their values accrete over time to face value at maturity. Some debt securities bear interest at rates that are not fixed, but that vary with changes in specified market rates or indices. The market prices of debt securities fluctuate depending on such factors as interest rates, credit quality and maturity. In general, market prices of debt securities decline when interest rates rise and, conversely, increase when interest rates fall. These fluctuations will generally be greater for longer-term debt securities than for shorter-term debt securities.

Debt securities may be sensitive to economic changes, political and corporate developments, and interest rate changes. In addition, during an economic downturn or a period of rising interest rates, issuers that are highly leveraged may experience increased financial stress that could adversely affect their ability to meet projected business goals, to obtain additional financing and to service their principal and interest payment obligations. Periods of economic change and uncertainty also can be expected to result in increased volatility of market prices and yields of certain debt securities and derivative instruments. For example, during the financial crisis of 2007-2009, the Federal Reserve implemented several economic policies that impacted interest rates and the market.

These policies, as well as potential actions by governmental entities both in and outside of the U.S., may expose fixed-income markets to heightened volatility and may reduce liquidity for certain investments, which could cause the value of the Portfolio to decline. Prices of debt securities can also be affected by financial contracts held by the issuer or third parties (such as derivatives) relating to the security or other assets or indices.

Debt securities may contain redemption or call provisions. If an issuer exercises these provisions in a lower interest rate market, the Portfolio would have to replace the security with a lower yielding security, resulting in decreased income to investors. If the issuer of a debt security defaults on its obligations to pay interest or principal or is the subject of bankruptcy proceedings, the Portfolio may incur losses or expenses in seeking recovery of amounts owed to it.

There may be little trading in the secondary market for particular debt securities, which may affect adversely the Portfolio's ability to value accurately or dispose of such debt securities. Adverse publicity and investor perceptions, whether or not based on fundamental analysis, may decrease the value and/or liquidity of debt securities.

Fixed-income securities are subject to "credit risk" — the risk that an issuer will be unable or unwilling to make principal and interest payments when due. U.S. Government securities are generally considered to be the safest type of investment in terms of credit risk. Municipal obligations generally rank between U.S. Government securities and corporate debt securities in terms of credit safety. Corporate debt securities, particularly those rated below investment grade, may present the highest credit risk. The Advisor attempts to reduce the risks described above through diversification of Portfolio investments and by credit analysis of each issuer, as well as by monitoring broad economic trends and corporate and legislative developments, but there can be no assurance that it will be successful in doing so.

Credit ratings for debt securities provided by rating agencies reflect an evaluation of the safety of principal and interest payments, not market value risk. The rating of an issuer is a rating agency's view of past and future potential developments related to the issuer and may not necessarily reflect actual outcomes. There can be a lag between the time of developments relating to an issuer and the time a rating is assigned and updated. Changes in an issuer's credit rating or the market's perception of an issuer's creditworthiness may also affect the value of the Portfolio investment in that issuer.

Bond rating agencies may assign modifiers (such as +/-) to ratings categories to signify the relative position of a credit within the rating category. Investment policies that are based on ratings categories should be read to include any security within that category, without giving consideration to the modifier except where otherwise provided. See Appendix A to this SAI for more information about credit ratings.

Foreign Securities

The Portfolio may invest in ADRs listed on the NYSE. Such investments may involve higher costs than investments in U.S. securities, including higher transaction costs and additional taxes by foreign governments. Foreign investments may also present additional risks associated with currency exchange rates, differences in accounting, auditing and financial reporting standards, holding securities in domestic and foreign custodian banks and depositories, less complete financial information about the issuers, less market liquidity, and political instability. Future political and economic developments, the possible imposition of withholding taxes on dividends, the possible seizure or nationalization of foreign holdings, the possible establishment of exchange controls, or the adoption of other governmental restrictions, might adversely affect the payment of dividends or principal and interest on foreign obligations. The Public Company Accounting Oversight Board, which regulates auditors of U.S. public companies, is unable to inspect audit work papers in certain foreign countries. Investors in foreign countries often have limited rights and few practical remedies to pursue shareholder claims, including class actions or fraud claims, and the ability of the SEC, the U.S. Department of Justice and other authorities to bring and enforce actions against foreign issuers or foreign persons is limited.

Foreign securities markets also have different clearance and settlement procedures, and in certain markets there have been times when settlements have been unable to keep pace with the volume of securities transactions, making it difficult to conduct such transactions. Delays in settlement could result in temporary periods when assets of the Portfolio are uninvested and no return is earned. The inability of the Portfolio to make intended security purchases due to these and other settlement problems could cause such Portfolio to miss attractive investment opportunities. Inability to dispose of portfolio securities due to settlement problems could result in losses to the Portfolio due to subsequent declines in value of the portfolio security or, if the Portfolio has entered into a contract to sell the security, could result in possible liability to the purchaser. Additionally, the Portfolio may encounter difficulties or be unable to pursue legal remedies and obtain judgments in foreign courts.

Although the Portfolio is permitted to invest in securities denominated in foreign currencies, the Portfolio's value its securities and other assets in U.S. dollars. As a result, the NAV of the Portfolio's shares may fluctuate with U.S. dollar exchange rates as well as with price changes of the Portfolio's securities in the various local markets and currencies. Thus, an increase in the value of the U.S. dollar compared to the currencies in which the Portfolio makes its investments could reduce the effect of increases and magnify the effect of decreases in the prices of the Portfolio's securities in their local markets. Conversely, a decrease in the value of the U.S. dollar will have the opposite effect of magnifying the effect of increases and reducing the effect of decreases in the prices of the Portfolio's securities in its local markets. In addition to favorable and unfavorable currency exchange rate developments, the Portfolio is subject to the possible imposition of exchange control regulations or freezes on convertibility of currency.

International war or conflicts (including Russia's invasion of Ukraine, as described below) and geopolitical events in foreign countries, along with instability in regions such as Asia, Eastern Europe and the Middle East, possible terrorist attacks in the United States or around the world, and other similar events could adversely affect the U.S. and foreign financial markets. As a result, whether or not the Portfolio invests in securities located in or with significant exposure to the countries directly affected, the value and liquidity of the Portfolio's investments may be negatively impacted. Further, due to closures of certain markets and restrictions on trading certain securities, the value of certain securities held by the Portfolio could be significantly impacted.

European countries can be significantly affected by the tight fiscal and monetary controls that the European Economic and Monetary Union ("EMU") imposes on its members. Europe's economies are diverse, its governments are decentralized, and its cultures vary widely. Several European Union ("EU") countries have faced budget issues, some of which may have negative long-term effects for the economies of those countries and other EU countries. There is continued concern about national-level support for the euro and the accompanying coordination of fiscal and wage policy among EMU member countries. Member countries are required to maintain tight control over inflation, public debt, and budget deficit to qualify for membership in the EMU. These requirements can severely limit the ability of EMU member countries to implement monetary policy to address regional economic conditions.

In 2016, the United Kingdom (the "UK") held a referendum election and voters elected to withdraw from the EU (commonly referred to as "Brexit"). On January 31, 2020, the UK officially withdrew from the EU and the two sides entered a transition phase that ended on December 31, 2020. On December 24, 2020, the UK and EU finalized a new trade deal with no tariffs or quotas on products, regulatory and customs cooperation mechanisms as well as provisions ensuring a level

playing field for open and fair competition. In March 2021, the UK and EU put in place a regulatory dialogue on financial systems based on a separate memorandum of understanding. The agreement governs the new relationship between the UK and EU with respect to trading goods and services, but critical aspects of the relationship remain unresolved and subject to further negotiation and agreement. The full scope and nature of the consequences of Brexit are not at this time known and are unlikely to be known for a significant period of time. It is also unknown whether the UK's exit will increase the likelihood of other countries also departing the EU. Any additional exits from the EU, or the possibility of such exits, may have a significant impact on the UK, Europe, and global economies, which may result in increased volatility and illiquidity, new legal and regulatory uncertainties and potentially lower economic growth for such economies that could potentially have an adverse effect on the value of the Portfolio's investments.

Other economic challenges facing Europe include high levels of public debt, significant rates of unemployment, aging populations, mass migrations from the Middle East and Africa and heavy regulation in certain economic sectors. European governments have taken unprecedented steps to respond to the economic crises and to boost growth in the region, which has increased the risk that regulatory uncertainty could negatively affect the Portfolio's investments. In addition, in February 2022, Russia commenced a military attack on Ukraine. The outbreak of hostilities between the two countries and the threat of wider-spread hostilities could have a severe adverse effect on the region and global economies, including significant negative impacts on the markets for certain securities and commodities, such as oil and natural gas. In addition, sanctions imposed on Russia by the United States and other countries, and any sanctions imposed in the future, could have a significant adverse impact on the Russian economy and related markets. The price and liquidity of investments may fluctuate widely as a result of the conflict and related events. How long the armed conflict and related events will last cannot be predicted. These tensions and any related events could have a significant impact on the Portfolio's performance and the value of the Portfolio's investments, even beyond any direct exposure the Portfolio may have to issuers located in these countries. The ultimate effects of these events and other socio-political or geopolitical issues are not known but could profoundly affect global economies and markets. The impact of these actions, especially if they occur in a disorderly fashion, is not clear, but could be significant and far-reaching.

Illiquid Investments

The Portfolio will not invest more than 15% of its respective net assets in investments that are illiquid. These investments are subject to the risk that should the Portfolio need to dispose of such investments, there may not be a ready market or the Portfolio may have to sell such investments at an undesirable price. Illiquid investments are any investment that the Portfolio reasonably expects cannot be sold or disposed of in current market conditions in seven calendar days or less without the sale or disposition significantly changing the market value of the investment (including repurchase agreements in excess of seven days).

Pursuant to Rule 22e-4 under the 1940 Act, the Portfolio has established a liquidity risk management program. If the limitation on illiquid securities is exceeded, other than by a change in market values, the condition will be reported to the Board and, when required, to the SEC.

Indexed Securities

An indexed security is an instrument whose price is indexed to the price of another security, security index, currency, or other financial indicators. Indexed securities typically, but not always, are debt securities or deposits whose value at maturity or coupon rate is determined by reference to a specific instrument or statistic.

The performance of indexed securities depends to a great extent on the performance of the security, currency, or other instrument to which they are indexed, and may also be influenced by interest rate changes in the United States and abroad. Indexed securities may be more volatile than the underlying instruments. Indexed securities are also subject to the credit risks associated with the issuer of the security, and their values may decline substantially if the issuer's creditworthiness deteriorates. Recent issuers of indexed securities have included banks, corporations, and certain U.S. Government agencies.

Interest Rate Risks

The Portfolio may invest in fixed-income securities. Generally, a fixed-income security will increase in value when interest rates fall and, conversely, decrease in value when interest rates rise. Longer-term securities are generally more

sensitive to interest rate changes than shorter-term securities, but they usually offer higher yields to compensate investors for the greater risks. The risks associated with changing interest rates are heightened under current market conditions given that interest rates in the United States and many other countries have fluctuated in recent periods and may continue to change in the foreseeable future. If interest rates are raised again in the future, the Portfolio's yield may not increase proportionately, and the maturities of fixed-income securities that have the ability to be prepaid or called by the issuer may be extended. Changes in market conditions and government action may have adverse effects on investments, volatility, and liquidity in debt markets and any negative impact on fixed-income securities could be swift and significant, potentially negatively impacting the Portfolio's performance. A general rise in interest rates may cause investors to move out of fixed-income securities on a large scale, which could adversely affect the price and liquidity of fixed-income securities. Substantial redemptions from bond and other income funds may worsen that impact. Dividend paying and other types of equity securities also may be adversely affected from an increase in interest rates.

Investment Company Securities

The Portfolio may invest in securities issued by other open-end or closed-end investment companies, including ETFs. The Portfolio may invest in securities issued by such other investment companies to the extent permitted by the 1940 Act. Under the 1940 Act, the Portfolio's investment in such securities currently is limited to, subject to certain exceptions: (i) 3% of the total voting stock of any one investment company; (ii) 5% of the Portfolio's total assets with respect to any one investment company; and (iii) 10% of the Portfolio's total assets with respect to investment companies in the aggregate. Investments in the securities of other investment companies will involve duplication of advisory fees and certain other expenses. Rule 12d1-1 under the 1940 Act permits the Portfolio to invest an unlimited amount of its uninvested cash in a money market fund so long as, among other things, said investment is consistent with the Portfolio's investment objective. As a shareholder of another mutual fund, the Portfolio would bear its pro rata portion of the other investment company's advisory fees and other expenses, in addition to the expenses the Portfolio bears directly in connection with its own operations. Furthermore, the investment company securities in which the Portfolio invests may decline in value. The SEC adopted certain regulatory changes and took other actions related to the ability of an investment company to invest in the securities of another investment company. These changes include, among other things, the rescission of certain SEC exemptive orders permitting investments in excess of the statutory limits and the withdrawal of certain related SEC staff no-action letters, and the adoption of Rule 12d1-4 under the 1940 Act, which permits the Portfolio to invest in other investment companies beyond the statutory limits, subject to certain conditions. Pursuant to Rule 12d1-4 and procedures approved by the Board, certain of the Fund's Portfolios may invest in certain ETFs in excess of the limits described above, provided that the Glenmede Fund complies with Rule 12d1-4 and any other applicable investment limitations.

The Portfolio's shares may be purchased by other investment companies, including other Portfolios of the Fund. An investment company's shares purchased by the Portfolio would be limited to 10% of the outstanding voting securities of the acquired investment company. For so long as the Portfolio invests in or accepts investments by other affiliated investment companies, it will not purchase securities of other investment companies, except to the extent permitted by the 1940 Act.

Real Estate Investment Trusts

The Portfolio may invest in real estate investment trusts ("REITs"). REITs are pooled investment vehicles which invest primarily in real estate or real estate related loans. REITs are generally classified as equity REITs, mortgage REITs or a combination of equity and mortgage REITs. Equity REITs invest the majority of their assets directly in real property and derive income primarily from the collection of rents. Equity REITs can also realize capital gains by selling properties that have appreciated in value. Equity REITs may further be categorized by the type of real estate securities they own, such as apartment properties, retail shopping centers, office and industrial properties, hotels, healthcare facilities, manufactured housing and mixed property types. Mortgage REITs invest the majority of their assets in real estate mortgages and derive income from the collection of interest payments. Hybrid REITs combine the characteristics of both equity and mortgage REITs. Like regulated investment companies such as the Fund's Portfolios, REITs are not taxed on income distributed to shareholders provided they comply with certain requirements under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"). The Portfolio will indirectly bear its proportionate share of any expenses paid by REITs in which it invests in addition to the expenses paid by the Portfolio.

Investing in REITs involves certain unique risks. Equity REITs may be affected by changes in the value of the underlying property owned by such REITs, while mortgage REITs may be affected by the quality of any credit extended.

REITs are dependent upon management skills, are not diversified (except to the extent the Code requires) and are subject to the risks of financing projects. REITs are subject to heavy cash flow dependency, default by borrowers, self-liquidation, and the possibilities of failing to qualify for the exemption from tax for distributed income under the Code and failing to maintain their exemptions from the 1940 Act. REITs (especially mortgage REITs) are also subject to interest rate risks. Investing in REITs also involves risks similar to those associated with investing in small capitalization companies. That is, they may have limited financial resources, may trade less frequently and in a limited volume and may be subject to abrupt or erratic price movements in comparison to larger capitalization companies.

In addition, the value of such securities may fluctuate in response to the market's perception of the creditworthiness of the issuers of mortgage-related securities owned by the Portfolio. Because investments in mortgage-related securities are interest sensitive, the ability of the issuer to reinvest or to reinvest favorably in underlying mortgages may be limited by government regulation or tax policy. For example, action by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System to limit the growth of the nation's money supply may cause interest rates to rise and thereby reduce the volume of new residential mortgages. Additionally, although mortgages and mortgage-related securities are generally supported by some form of government or private guarantees and/or insurance, there is no assurance that private guarantors or insurers will be able to meet their obligation.

Repurchase Agreements

The Portfolio may enter into repurchase agreements with qualified brokers, dealers, banks and other financial institutions deemed creditworthy by the Advisor. Under normal circumstances, however, the Portfolio will not enter into repurchase agreements if entering into such agreements would cause, at the time of entering into such agreements, more than 20% of the value of the total assets of the Portfolio to be subject to repurchase agreements.

In effect, by entering into a repurchase agreement, the Portfolio is lending its funds to the seller at the agreed upon interest rate, and receiving a security as collateral for the loan. Such agreements can be entered into for periods of one day (overnight repo) or for a fixed term (term repo). Repurchase agreements are a common way to earn interest income on short-term funds.

In a repurchase agreement, the Portfolio purchases a security and simultaneously commits to resell that security at a future date to the seller (a qualified bank or securities dealer) at an agreed upon price plus an agreed upon market rate of interest (itself unrelated to the coupon rate or date of maturity of the purchased security). The seller under a repurchase agreement will be required to maintain the value of the securities which are subject to the agreement and held by the Portfolio at not less than the agreed upon repurchase price.

If the seller defaults on its repurchase obligation, the Portfolio holding such obligation will suffer a loss to the extent that the proceeds from a sale of the underlying securities (including accrued interest) were less than the repurchase price (including accrued interest) under the agreement. In the event that such a defaulting seller files for bankruptcy or becomes insolvent, disposition of such securities by the Portfolio might be delayed pending court action.

Repurchase agreements that do not provide for payment to the Portfolio within seven days after notice without taking a reduced price are considered illiquid investments.

Securities Lending

The Portfolio may lend its portfolio securities with a value of up to one-third of its total assets (including the value of the collateral for the loans) to qualified brokers, dealers, banks and other financial institutions who need to borrow securities in order to complete certain transactions, such as covering short sales, avoiding failures to deliver securities or completing arbitrage operations. By lending its investment securities, the Portfolio attempts to increase its income through the receipt of interest on the loan. Any gain or loss in the market price of the securities loaned that might occur during the term of the loan would be for the account of the Portfolio. The Portfolio may lend its portfolio securities only when the terms, the structure and the aggregate amount of such loans are not inconsistent with the 1940 Act or the rules and regulations or interpretations of the SEC thereunder. All relevant facts and circumstances, including the creditworthiness of the broker, dealer or institution, will be considered by the Advisor in making decisions with respect to the lending of securities, subject to review by the Board.

When lending portfolio securities, the securities may not be available to the Portfolio on a timely basis. Therefore, the Portfolio may lose the opportunity to sell the securities at a desirable price. Such loans would also involve risks of delay in receiving additional collateral if the value of the collateral decreases below the value of the securities loaned or even the loss of rights to the collateral should the borrower of the securities fail financially. Additionally, if a borrower of securities files for bankruptcy or becomes insolvent, disposition of the securities may be delayed pending court action. The Portfolio may also record realized gain or loss on securities deemed sold due to a borrower's inability to return securities on loan. The Portfolio may, from time to time, pay negotiated fees in connection with the lending of securities. State Street Bank and Trust Company ("State Street") serves as the Fund's securities lending agent. For these services, the lending agent receives a fee based on the income earned on the Portfolio's investment of cash received as collateral for the loaned securities, a portion of any loan premium paid by the borrower, and reimbursement of expenses advanced as a result of the Portfolio's securities lending activities, if any.

The lending agent may, on behalf of the Portfolio, invest the cash collateral received in short-term money market instruments, including commercial paper, money market mutual funds, certificates of deposit, time deposits and other short-term bank obligations, securities issued by the U.S. Government, its agencies or instrumentalities, repurchase agreements and other highly rated liquid investments. These investments may include mutual funds, with respect to which State Street and/or its affiliates provide investment management or advisory, trust, custody, transfer agency, shareholder servicing and/or other services for which they are compensated.

U.S. Government Obligations

The Portfolio may invest in obligations issued or guaranteed by the U.S. Government, its agencies, authorities or instrumentalities.

Direct obligations of the U.S. Government such as Treasury bills, notes and bonds are supported by its full faith and credit. Indirect obligations issued by Federal agencies and government-sponsored entities generally are not backed by the full faith and credit of the U.S. Treasury. Some of these indirect obligations may be supported by the right of the issuer to borrow from the Treasury; others are supported by the discretionary authority of the U.S. Government to purchase the agency's obligations; still others are supported only by the credit of the instrumentality. Please refer to Appendix A for further information about U.S. Government obligations.

"When Issued," "Delayed Settlement" and "Forward Delivery" Securities

The Portfolio may purchase and sell securities on a "when issued," "delayed settlement" or "forward delivery" basis. "When issued" or "forward delivery" refers to securities whose terms and indenture are available and for which a market exists, but which are not available for immediate delivery. Securities purchased or sold on a when-issued or delayeddelivery basis may be settled after a period longer than the regular settlement time of trade date plus two business days. "Delayed settlement" is a term used to describe settlement of a securities transaction in the secondary market which will occur sometime in the future.

The Portfolio will engage in "when issued" transactions to obtain what is considered to be an advantageous price and yield at the time of the transaction. When the Portfolio engages in "when issued," "delayed settlement" or "forward delivery" transactions, it will do so for the purpose of acquiring securities consistent with its investment objective and policies and not for the purpose of speculation. The Portfolio's "when issued," "delayed settlement" and "forward delivery" commitments are not expected to exceed 30% of its total assets absent unusual market circumstances. Subject to the Delayed-Settlement Securities Provision of Rule 18f-4 and consistent with the requirements discussed under "Derivative Instruments," above, the Portfolio will only sell securities on a when issued, delayed settlement or forward delivery basis to offset securities purchased on a when-issued, delayed settlement or forward delivery basis.

Securities purchased or sold on a "when issued," "delayed settlement" or "forward delivery" basis are subject to changes in value based upon changes in the general level of interest rates. In when-issued and delayed settlement transactions, the Portfolio relies on the seller to complete the transaction; the seller's failure to do so may cause the Portfolio to miss an advantageous price or yield.

PRICE OF PORTFOLIO SHARES

The NAV per share of each class of shares of the Portfolio is determined by dividing the total market value of its investments and other assets, less liabilities allocated to that share class, by the total number of its shares outstanding of that class.

Equity securities and options listed on a U.S. securities exchange, including ETFs, for which quotations are readily available are valued at the last quoted sale price as of the close of the exchange's regular trading hours on the day the valuation is made. Price information on listed securities is taken from the exchange where the security is primarily traded. Unlisted U.S. equity securities and listed securities not traded on the valuation date for which market quotations are readily available are valued not in excess of the asked prices or less than the bid prices. If no sales are reported, listed options are valued at the mean of the bid and ask price. Investments in open-ended and unlisted closed-ended investment companies are valued at their respective NAVs as reported by such companies.

Marketable fixed-income securities are valued according to the broadest and most representative market, which will ordinarily be the OTC market, at the most recent quoted bid price, or when stock exchange valuations are used, at the latest quoted sale price on the day of valuation. If there is not such a reported sale, the latest quoted bid price will be used. NAV includes interest on fixed-income securities which is accrued daily. In addition, bond and other fixed-income securities may be valued on the basis of prices provided by a pricing service or by using a matrix or formula, when the Advisor believes such prices reflect the fair market value of such securities. The prices provided by a pricing service are determined without regard to bid or last sale prices, but take into account institutional size trading in similar groups of securities and any developments related to specific securities. The matrix pricing method values securities by reference to prices of comparable securities obtained from sources the Advisor deems accurate and reliable. Debt securities with maturities of 60 days or less at the time of purchase are valued at amortized cost, which does not take into account unrealized gains or losses. The amortized cost method involves valuing an instrument at its cost and thereafter assuming a constant amortization to maturity of any discount or premium, regardless of the impact of fluctuating interest rates on the market value of the instrument. While this method provides certainty in valuation, it may result in periods during which value, as determined by amortized cost, is higher or lower than the price the Portfolio would receive if it sold the instrument.

Securities listed on a foreign exchange and unlisted foreign securities are valued at the latest quoted sales price available when assets are valued. Foreign securities for which market quotations are not readily available or for which the above valuation procedures are deemed not to reflect fair value are valued in a manner that is intended to reflect their fair value as determined in accordance with procedures approved by the Board. Foreign securities may trade on days when shares of the Portfolio are not priced; as a result, the NAV of shares of the Portfolio may change on days when shareholders will not be able to purchase or redeem the Portfolio's shares. Foreign currency amounts are translated into U.S. dollars at the bid prices of such currencies against U.S. dollars last quoted by a major bank.

When market quotations are unavailable or when events occur that make established valuation methods unreliable, the Fund's Portfolios' investments will be valued at fair value as determined in good faith using methods determined by the Board. The Board has designated the Advisor to serve as the valuation designee (in such capacity, the "Valuation Designee") with respect to the Fund's Portfolios' securities for which valuations are not readily available. The Valuation Designee works with State Street, the Fund's custodian, to regularly test the accuracy of the fair value prices by comparing them with values that are available from other sources. At each regularly scheduled Board meeting, a report by the Valuation Designee is submitted describing any security that has been fair valued and the basis for the fair value determination.

PURCHASE OF SHARES

The purchase price of shares of each class of the Portfolio is the NAV next determined after receipt of the purchase order by the Portfolio. It is the responsibility of The Glenmede Trust Company, N.A., the parent company of the Advisor ("Glenmede Trust"), the Advisor or certain approved brokers, employee benefit plans or other institutions to transmit orders for share purchases to State Street, the Fund's transfer agent, and to deliver, or provide instructions to investors for the delivery of, required funds to State Street, the Fund's custodian, on a timely basis.

The Portfolio reserves the right in its sole discretion (i) to suspend the offering of its shares, (ii) to reject purchase orders when in the judgment of management such rejection is in the best interest of the Portfolio, (iii) to reduce or waive the minimum for initial and subsequent investments, from time to time and (iv) to close at any time to new investments or to new accounts.

At the discretion of the Fund, investors may be permitted to purchase Portfolio shares by transferring securities to the Portfolio that meets the Portfolio's investment objective and policies.

REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Redemption proceeds are normally paid in cash, although the Fund has elected to be governed by Rule 18f-1 under the 1940 Act which permits them to limit each shareholder to cash redemptions of \$ 250,000 or 1% of the Portfolio's NAV, whichever is less, within a 90-day period or, subject to the approval of the Board, in other circumstances identified by the Advisor. Any additional redemption proceeds would be made in readily marketable securities.

PORTFOLIO TURNOVER

The Portfolio may engage in active short-term trading to benefit from price disparities among different issues of securities or among the markets for equity securities, or for other reasons. It is anticipated that the portfolio turnover may vary greatly from year to year as well as within a particular year, and may be affected by changes in the holdings of specific issuers, changes in country and currency weightings, cash requirements for redemption of shares and by requirements which enable the Portfolio to receive favorable tax treatment. The Portfolio is not restricted by policy with regard to portfolio turnover and will make changes in their investment portfolio from time to time as business and economic conditions as well as market prices may dictate.

A high portfolio turnover rate can result in corresponding increases in brokerage commissions; however, the Advisor will not consider turnover rate a limiting factor in making investment decisions consistent with the Portfolio's investment objective and policies.

DISCLOSURE OF PORTFOLIO HOLDINGS

The Board has adopted a policy on selective disclosure of portfolio holdings (including, but not limited to, portfolio securities holdings, asset allocations, sector allocations, and other portfolio holdings statistics, collectively referred to herein as "portfolio holdings"). The policy provides that neither the Fund, nor its advisor, administrator, transfer agent nor distributor (each, a "Fund Service Provider") will disclose the Fund's portfolio holdings to any person other than in accordance with the policy. Under the policy, neither the Fund, any Fund Service Provider, nor any of their affiliated persons may receive any compensation in any form, whether in cash or otherwise, in connection with the disclosure of portfolio holdings. A Fund Service Provider may provide portfolio holdings to third parties if such information has been included in the Fund's public filings as required by the SEC or other filings, reports or disclosure documents as the SEC or other applicable regulatory authorities may require. The Advisor may post the following portfolio holdings on its website or any website maintained for the Fund or otherwise in a manner available to all shareholders: (1) no earlier than ten calendar days after the end of each month, the month-end top-ten portfolio holdings. This information may then be separately provided to any person commencing the day after it is first published on the website. Such information shall remain available on the website at least until the Fund files with the SEC its annual/semi-annual shareholder report that includes such period or its report on Form N-PORT for the last month of the Fund's first or third fiscal quarters.

Portfolio holdings information that is not filed with the SEC or not otherwise required to be disclosed by the SEC or other applicable regulatory authorities, may be provided to third parties only if the Fund has a legitimate business purpose for doing so, the third-party recipients are required to keep all portfolio holdings information confidential and are prohibited from trading on the information they receive. In order to ensure that the disclosure of the Fund's non-public portfolio holdings is in the best interests of the Fund's shareholders and to avoid any potential or actual conflicts of interest with the Fund Service Providers or other affiliated persons, disclosure to such third parties must be authorized by the Fund's President and approved in advance by the Board. Under the policy, the Board is to receive information, on a quarterly basis, regarding any disclosures of non-public portfolio holdings information that were permitted during the preceding quarter. Such authorization, pre-approval and reporting is not required for disclosure by the Fund's administrator to providers of

auditing, custody, proxy voting and other services to the Fund, as well as rating and ranking organizations. In general, each recipient of non-public portfolio holdings information must sign a confidentiality and non-trading agreement, although this requirement will not apply when the recipient is otherwise subject to a duty of confidentiality.

Under the policy, the Fund's President has authorized the release of information regarding the Fund's portfolio holdings on a daily basis to providers of auditing, custody, proxy voting, legal and other services to the Fund, currently including:

- (i) State Street, in connection with the provision of services as the Fund's custodian, administrator, transfer agent, securities lending agent and short sales lending agent;
- (ii) Third-party providers of proxy voting services, such as Institutional Shareholder Services Inc. ("ISS") and mailing services such as Broadridge Financial Solutions, Inc. ("Broadridge");
- (iii) Cohen & Company, Ltd., the Fund's independent registered public accounting firm, in connection with the provision of services related to the audit of the Fund's financial statements and certain non-audit services;
- (iv) Third-party providers of pricing/analytical/reconciliation services, such as FT Interactive Data Corporation, FactSet, Bloomberg Valuation Service (BVAL) and Electra Information Systems;
- (v) Ratings and ranking organizations, such as Morningstar, Inc. and Lipper/Thomson Reuters;
- (vi) Faegre Drinker Biddle & Reath LLP, in connection with the provision of services as legal counsel to the Fund;
- (vii) Foreside Financial Group, LLC in connection with the provision of services related to the Fund's compliance program;
- (viii) Barclays Capital Inc., BTIG LLC, J.P. Morgan Securities LLC and its affiliates, Goldman Sachs Execution and Clearing LP and Goldman, Sachs & Co., in connection with the performance of brokerage and options trading and related functions; and
- (ix) Third-party financial printers, such as Broadridge Financial Solutions.

INVESTMENT LIMITATIONS

The Portfolio is subject to the following restrictions. The numbered restrictions are fundamental policies and may not be changed without the approval of the lesser of: (1) 67% of the voting securities of the affected Portfolio present at a meeting if the holders of more than 50% of the outstanding voting securities of the affected Portfolio are present or represented by proxy, or (2) more than 50% of the outstanding voting securities of the affected Portfolio.

The Portfolio will not:

- (1) invest in commodities or commodity contracts, except that the Portfolio may invest in futures contracts and options;
- (2) purchase or sell real estate, although it may purchase and sell securities of companies which deal in real estate and may purchase and sell securities which are secured by interests in real estate;
- (3) make loans, except (i) by purchasing bonds, debentures or similar obligations (including repurchase agreements, subject to the limitation described in investment limitation (9) below, and money market instruments, including bankers' acceptances and commercial paper, and selling securities on a when issued, delayed settlement or forward delivery basis) which are publicly or privately distributed, and (ii) by lending its portfolio securities to banks, brokers, dealers and other financial institutions so long as such loans are not inconsistent with the 1940 Act or the rules and regulations or interpretations of the SEC thereunder;
- (4) purchase on margin or sell short, except as specified above in investment limitation (1);
- (5) purchase more than 10% of any class of the outstanding voting securities of any issuer;
- (6) issue senior securities, except that the Portfolio may borrow money in accordance with investment limitation below, purchase securities on a when issued, delayed settlement or forward delivery basis and enter into reverse repurchase agreements;

- (7) borrow money, except as a temporary measure for extraordinary or emergency purposes, and then not in excess of 10% of its total assets at the time of the borrowing (entering into reverse repurchase agreements and purchasing securities on a when issued, delayed settlement or forward delivery basis are not subject to this investment limitation);
- (8) pledge, mortgage, or hypothecate any of its assets to an extent greater than 10% of its total assets at fair market value, except as described in the Prospectus and this SAI and in connection with entering into futures contracts, but the deposit of assets in a segregated account in connection with the writing of covered put and call options and the purchase of securities on a when issued, delayed settlement or forward delivery basis and collateral arrangements with respect to initial or variation margin for futures contracts will not be deemed to be pledges of the Portfolio's assets or the purchase of any securities on margin for purposes of this investment limitation;
- (9) underwrite the securities of other issuers or invest more than an aggregate of 15% of the total assets of the Portfolio, at the time of purchase, in securities for which there are no readily available markets, including repurchase agreements which have maturities of more than seven days or, in the case of the Portfolio, securities subject to legal or contractual restrictions on resale;
- (10) invest for the purpose of exercising control over management of any company;
- (11) invest its assets in securities of any investment company, except in connection with mergers, acquisitions of assets or consolidations and except as may otherwise be permitted by the 1940 Act;
- (12) acquire any securities of companies within one industry if, as a result of such acquisition, more than 25% of the value of the Portfolio's net assets would be invested in securities of companies within such industry; provided, however, that there shall be no limitation on the purchase of obligations issued or guaranteed by the U.S. Government, its agencies, enterprises or instrumentalities;
- (13) write or acquire options or interests in oil, gas or other mineral exploration or development programs; and
- (14) with respect to 75% of its total assets, invest more than 5% of its total assets at the time of purchase in the securities of any single issuer (other than obligations issued or guaranteed by the U.S. Government, its agencies, enterprises or instrumentalities).

If the Portfolio's borrowings are in excess of 5% (excluding overdrafts) of its total net assets, additional portfolio purchases will not be made until the amount of such borrowing is reduced to 5% or less.

Borrowings including reverse repurchase agreements and securities purchased on a when issued, delayed settlement or forward delivery basis may not exceed $33\frac{1}{3}\%$ of the Portfolio's total net assets.

In addition, with respect to investment limitation (12), (a) there is no limitation with respect to (i) instruments issued or guaranteed by the United States, any state, territory or possession of the United States, the District of Columbia or any of their authorities, agencies, instrumentalities or political subdivisions, and (ii) repurchase agreements secured by the instruments described in clause (i); (b) wholly-owned finance companies will be considered to be in the industries of their parents if their activities are primarily related to financing the activities of the parents; and (c) utilities will be divided according to their services; for example, gas, gas transmission, electric and gas, electric and telephone will each be considered a separate industry.

With regard to limitation (13), the purchase of securities of a corporation, a subsidiary of which has an interest in oil, gas or other mineral exploration or development programs shall not be deemed to be prohibited by the limitation.

If a percentage restriction is adhered to at the time an investment is made, a later increase in percentage resulting from a change in value or assets will not constitute a violation of such restriction except as to limitations on borrowings.

MANAGEMENT OF THE FUND

The Fund's officers, under the supervision of the Board, manage the day-to-day operations of the Fund. The Board members set broad policies for the Fund and choose its officers. The Fund's Board member holds office until the earliest of (i) the next meeting of shareholders, if any, called for the purpose of considering the election or re-election of such member and until the election and qualification of his/her successor, if any, elected at such meeting, or (ii) the date he or she dies, resigns or retires, or is removed by the Board or shareholders. The Fund's officers are elected by the Board and hold office for the term of one year and until his or her successor is duly elected and qualified, or until he or she dies, resigns, is removed, or becomes disqualified.

Board Members and Officers

The following is a list of the Board members and officers of the Fund, their ages, their principal occupations during the past five years, the number of currently-offered portfolios that they oversee in the Fund's complex, and other directorships they hold. The Fund is considered to be a member of the same fund complex as the Glenmede Portfolios, as defined in Form N-1A under the 1940 Act. Unless otherwise indicated below, the address of each Board member and officer is c/o Glenmede Investment Management LP, 1650 Market Street, Suite 4000, Philadelphia, PA 19103.

Name and Year of Birth Interested Directors ⁽¹⁾	Position with the Fund and Time Served	Principal Occupations(s) During Past 5 Years	Number of Portfolios in Fund Complex Overseen	Other Directorships Held in the Past Five Years
Susan W. Catherwood Year of Birth: 1943	Director of Glenmede Fund (since February 2007)	Director (since 1988) and Member of the Investment Review/ Relationship Oversight Committee (since 2001), Compensation Committee (since 1993) and Nominating Committee (since 2018), Glenmede Trust; Director, The Glenmede Corporation (since 1988); Board Member, The Pew Charitable Trusts; Charter Trustee, The University of Pennsylvania; Chairman Emeritus, The University Museum of The University of Pennsylvania; Chairman of the Board of Managers, The Christopher Ludwick Foundation; Board Member, Monell Chemical Senses Center; Director: Thomas Skelton Harrison Foundation and The Catherwood Foundation; Fellow and serves on Finance and Investment Committees, and former Board member, College of Physicians of Philadelphia; Former Member and Chair, The Women's Committee and Penn Museum Board of Overseers of the University of Pennsylvania; Former Board Chair, University of Pennsylvania Health System (1991-1999).	14	None

Name and Year of Birth	Position with the Fund and Time Served	Principal Occupations(s) During Past 5 Years	Number of Portfolios in Fund Complex Overseen	Other Directorships Held in the Past Five Years
Mary Ann B. Wirts Year of Birth: 1951	Director of Glenmede Fund (since June 2020)	Managing Director and Chief Administrative Officer of Glenmede Trust (until 2020); Managing Director and Chief Administrative Officer of Glenmede Investment Management LP (2006-2020); First Vice President and Managing Director of Fixed Income of Glenmede Advisers (2000- 2006).	14	None
Independent Directors ⁽²⁾				
Andrew Phillips Year of Birth: 1962	Director of Glenmede Fund (since September 2022)	Adjunct Professor - College of Management (since 2021), Long Island University; Senior Performance Officer (2013 - 2015), Global Head of Institutional and Alternatives Product Strategy (2012 - 2013), Global Chief Performance Officer (2010 - 2012), Global Chief Operating Officer (2007 - 2010) and Managing Director - Americas Fixed Income Executive Team, BlackRock, Inc.	14	None
H. Franklin Allen, Ph.D. Year of Birth: 1956	Director of Glenmede Fund (since March 1991)	Vice Dean Research and Faculty of the Imperial College Business School (since 2019), Professor of Finance and Economics and Executive Director of the Brevan Howard Centre for Financial Analysis at the Imperial College London (since 2014); Professor Emeritus of Finance, The Wharton School of The University of Pennsylvania since June 2016; Professor of Finance and Economics (1990-1994); Vice Dean and Director of Wharton Doctoral Programs (1990- 1993); Employed by The University of Pennsylvania (from 1980-2016).	14	None

Name and Year of Birth	Position with the Fund and Time Served	Principal Occupations(s) During Past 5 Years	Number of Portfolios in Fund Complex Overseen	Other Directorships Held in the Past Five Years
William L. Cobb, Jr. Year of Birth: 1947	Director of Glenmede Fund (since February 2007) Chairman of Glenmede Fund (since December 2021)	Former Executive Vice President and Former Chief Investment Officer, The Church Pension Fund (defined benefit plan for retired clergy of the Episcopal Church) (1999-2014); Chair and Member, Investment Committee, The Minister and Missionaries Benefit Board of the American Baptist Church (until 2013); Vice Chairman, J.P. Morgan Investment Management (1994 -1999).	14	Director, TCW Direct Lending LLC
Rebecca E. Duseau Year of Birth: 1963	Director of Glenmede Fund (since December 2023)	Cofounder and Chief Compliance Officer (since 2000), Adamas Partners, LLC (investment firm); Chair of Investment Advisory Board (since 2020) for Boston Family Advisors (multi-family office); Member of Investment Committees of Mass General Brigham (hospital) (since 2019) and Berklee School of Music (since 2019); Chair of the Investment Committee and Member of the Finance Committee, Museum of Science (since 2023).	14	None
Harry Wong Year of Birth: 1948	Director of Glenmede Fund (since February 2007)	Former Managing Director, Knight Capital Americas, L.P., an operating subsidiary of Knight Capital Group Inc. (investment banking) (2009 - 2011); Managing Director, Long Point Advisors, LLC (business consulting) (2003 - 2012); Managing Director, BIO-IB LLC (healthcare investment banking) (2004-2009) Senior Managing Director, ABN AMRO (investment banking) (1990- 2002); Adjunct Faculty Member, Sacred Heart University (2003- 2007).	14	None

⁽¹⁾ Interested Directors are those Directors who are "interested persons" of the Fund as defined in the 1940 Act. Susan W. Catherwood and Mary Ann B. Wirts are considered to be "interested" Director of the Fund because of their current or prior affiliations with Glenmede Trust, the parent company of the Fund's investment advisor, GIM, and/or their stock ownership in The Glenmede Corporation, of which GIM is an affiliate.

⁽²⁾ Independent Directors are those Directors who are not "interested persons" of the Fund as defined in the 1940 Act.

Officers

Name, Address and Year of Birth	Position with the Fund and Time Served	Principal Occupations(s) During Past 5 Years
Elizabeth A. Eldridge 1650 Market Street, Suite 4000 Philadelphia, PA 19103 Year of Birth: 1977	President of Glenmede Fund since November 2024	President of Glenmede Investment Management LP (since 2024). Managing Director, The Glenmede Trust Company, N.A. (2020).
Kimberly C. Osborne 1650 Market Street, Suite 4000 Philadelphia, PA 19103 Year of Birth: 1966	Executive Vice President of Glenmede Fund since December 1997; Assistant Treasurer of the Fund since December 2020	Client Service Manager of Glenmede Investment Management LP (since 2006). Vice President of Glenmede Trust and Glenmede Advisers (until 2008). Employed by Glenmede Trust (1993-2008) and Glenmede Advisers (2000-2008).
Christopher E. McGuire 1650 Market Street, Suite 4000 Philadelphia, PA 19103 Year of Birth: 1973	Treasurer of Glenmede Fund since December 2019.	Director of Administration of Glenmede Investment Management LP (since October 2019); Managing Director, State Street Bank and Trust Company (from 2007- 2019).
Eimile J. Moore 3 Canal Plaza, Suite 100, 3rd FloorPortland, ME 04101 Year of Birth: 1969	Chief Compliance Officer of Glenmede Fund since December 2017.	Senior Principal Consultant (since 2011).
Joshua M. Lindauer 1177 Avenue of the Americas, 41st Floor New York, NY 10036 Year of Birth: 1987	Secretary of Glenmede Fund since December 2024	Partner, Faegre Drinker Biddle & Reath LLP (law firm) (since 2024); Associate, Faegre Drinker Biddle & Reath LLP (2020-2024); Associate, Drinker Biddle & Reath LLP (law firm) 2017-2020.

The Board believes that each Director's experience, qualifications, attributes and skills on an individual basis and in combination with those of the other Directors lead to the conclusion that each Director should serve in such capacity.

Among the attributes common to all Directors is the ability to review critically, evaluate, question and discuss information provided to them, to interact effectively with the other Directors, the Advisor, other service providers, legal counsel and the independent registered public accounting firm, and to exercise effective business judgment in the performance of their duties as Directors. A Director's ability to perform his or her duties effectively may have been attained through such person's business, consulting and/or academic positions; experience as a board member of the Fund, other investment funds, or non-profit entities or other organizations; education or professional training; and/or other life experiences. In addition to these shared characteristics, set forth below is a brief discussion of the specific experience, qualifications, attributes or skills of each Director:

H. Franklin Allen, Ph.D.:	Dr. Allen has substantial experience in the areas of finance and economics through his
	educational background and position for many years as a professor of finance and economics
	at The Wharton School of The University of Pennsylvania and most recently as Vice Dean of
	Research and Faculty of the Imperial College London Business School and Professor of
	Finance and Economics and Director of the Brevan Howard Centre for Financial Analysis at the Imperial College London.
Susan W. Catherwood:	Ms. Catherwood has substantial business, finance and investment management experience through her board and committee positions with the parent companies of the Advisor and her board and/or executive positions with academic entities, charitable foundations and companies.

William L. Cobb, Jr.:	Mr. Cobb has substantial investment management and business experience through his senior executive, chief investment officer and/or investment committee positions with private and non- profit entities, as a senior executive officer of a global investment management firm and most recently as a board member of a business development company.
Rebecca E. Duseau:	Ms. Duseau has substantial investment management, compliance, risk management and business experience as a co-founder and executive of an investment management firm.
Andrew Phillips:	Mr. Phillips has substantial investment management and business experience through his executive positions with a major investment management firm.
Mary Ann B. Wirts:	Ms. Wirts has substantial business, financial services and investment management experience through her senior executive positions with the Advisor and its parent companies.
Harry Wong:	Mr. Wong has substantial finance, investment banking and capital markets experience through his positions as an executive in investment banking businesses.

Specific details regarding each Director's term of office as a Director with the Fund and principal occupations during at least the past five years are included in the table above.

Leadership Structure and Oversight Responsibilities

Overall responsibility for oversight of the Fund rests with the Board. The Fund has engaged an investment adviser to manage its Portfolios on a day-to-day basis. The Board is responsible for overseeing the investment adviser and other service providers in the operations of the Fund in accordance with the provisions of the 1940 Act, applicable provisions of state and other laws and the Fund's Charter and By-laws. The Board is currently composed of seven members, five of whom are Independent Directors. The Board meets in-person at regularly scheduled meetings four times each year. In addition, the Board may hold special in-person or telephonic meetings or informal conference calls to discuss specific matters that may arise or require action between regular meetings. The Board may also meet via videoconference. The Board and the Independent Directors have access to the Fund's Chief Compliance Officer "CCO"), the Fund's independent registered public accounting firm and independent legal counsel for consultation to assist them in performing their oversight responsibilities. As described below, the Board has established an Audit Committee, Valuation Committee, and Nominating Committee and may establish ad hoc committees or working groups from time to time to assist the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities.

The Board has appointed William L. Cobb, Jr., an Independent Director, to serve in the role of Chairman of the Board. The Chairman's role is to preside at all meetings of the Board and to act as liaison with the investment adviser, other service providers, counsel and other Directors generally between meetings. The Chairman may also perform such other functions as may be delegated by the Board from time to time. The Board reviews its leadership structures during their periodic self-assessments and based on that review, has determined that the Board's leadership structure is appropriate because it allows the Board to exercise informed judgment over matters under its purview and it allocates areas of responsibility among committees of the Board and the full Board in a manner that enhances effective oversight.

The Fund is subject to a number of risks, including investment, compliance, operational and valuation risks, among others. Risk oversight forms part of the Board's general oversight of the Fund and is addressed as part of the Board's and its committees' various activities. Day-to-day risk management functions are included within the responsibilities of the investment adviser and other service providers (depending on the nature of the risk), which carry out the Fund's investment management and business affairs. The investment adviser and other service providers employ a variety of processes, procedures and controls to identify various events or circumstances that give rise to risks, to lessen the probability of their occurrence and/or to mitigate the effects of such events or circumstances if they do occur. The investment adviser and other service providers have their own independent interests in risk management, and their policies and methods of risk management will depend on their functions and business models.

The Board recognizes that it is not possible to identify all of the risks that may affect the Fund or to develop processes and controls to eliminate or mitigate their occurrence or effects. The Board requires senior officers of the Fund, including the President, Chief Financial Officer and CCO, and the investment adviser, to report to the full Board on a variety of matters at each regular meeting of the Board, including matters relating to risk management. The Board also receives reports from certain of the Fund's other primary service providers on regular basis, including State Street as the Fund's custodian, administrator, transfer agent and securities lending agent. The Fund's CCO meets in executive session with the Board at each regularly scheduled meeting and meets separately with the Independent Directors at least annually to discuss relevant risk issues affecting the Fund. In addition, the CCO reports to the Chairman of the Audit Committee between meetings to discuss compliance related matters. The Audit Committee also receive regular reports from the Fund's independent Directors meet with the Fund's independent legal counsel each quarterly meeting and have access to legal counsel for consultation concerning any issues that may occur between regularly scheduled meetings. The Board may, at any time and in their discretion, change the manner in which it conducts risk oversight.

Standing Board Committees

Dr. Allen and Messrs. Cobb, Phillips and Wong (Chairman) and Ms. Duseau serve on the Audit Committee of the Board. The Audit Committee operates under a written charter approved by the Board. The purpose of the Audit Committee includes overseeing the accounting and financial reporting processes of the Fund and the audits of the Fund's financial statements. Accordingly, the Committee assists the Board in its oversight of (i) the integrity of the Fund's financial statements; (ii) the independent accountants' qualifications and independence; and (iii) the performance of the Fund's internal audit function and independent accountants. The Audit Committees met three times during the fiscal year ended October 31, 2024.

Dr. Allen (Chairman) and Messrs. Cobb, Wong and Phillips and Ms. Duseau serve on the Nominating Committee of the Board. The Fund's Nominating Committee, among other things, nominates persons to fill vacancies on the Board and Board Committees. The Nominating Committees will consider nominees recommended by shareholders.

Recommendations should be submitted to the appropriate Nominating Committee in care of the Fund's Secretary. The Nominating Committees met once during the fiscal year ended October 31, 2024.

Director Ownership of Fund Shares

The following table shows the Directors' ownership of each Portfolio of the Fund and in all Portfolios of the Fund overseen by the Directors, as of December 31, 2024.

Name of Director	Dollar Range of Equity Securities in each Portfolio of the Fund	Aggregate Dollar Range of Equity Securities in All Portfolios in the Fund Complex
Interested Directors		
Susan W. Catherwood	None	None
Mary Ann B. Wirts	None	None
Independent Directors		
H. Franklin Allen, Ph.D.	None	None
William L. Cobb, Jr.	None	None
Rebecca E. Duseau	None	None
Andrew Phillips	None	None
Harry Wong	None	None

Remuneration of Board Members

The annual fee for each Board member, other than officers of the Advisor, is \$104,000. In addition, to the annual fee, the Glenmede Fund pays each Board member, other than officers of the Advisor, \$5,000 for each Board meeting attended and out-of-pocket expenses incurred in attending Board meetings, the Audit Committee Chairman receives an annual fee of \$10,000 for his service as Chairman of the Audit Committee and the Chairman of the Board receives an annual fee of \$15,000 for his service as Chairman of the Board. Each Director is also a Trustee of the Glenmede Portfolios, a

Massachusetts business trust that does not currently offer any series. For their service on the Glenmede Portfolios' Board, effective October 31, 2024, each Director receives an annual fee of \$ 500 per year. Prior to October 31, 2024, each Director who served as a Trustee of Glenmede Portfolios received an annual fee of \$6,000 per year. The officers of the Fund receive no compensation as officers from the Fund.

Set forth in the table below is the compensation received by Board members for the fiscal year ended October 31, 2024.

Name of Person Position *	Aggregate Compensation from Glenmede Fund	Aggregate Compensation from Glenmede Portfolios**	Pension Retirement Benefits Accrued as Part of Fund Expenses	Estimated Annual Benefits upon Retirement	Total Compensation from the Fund Complex
Interested Directors					
Susan W. Catherwood	\$124,000	\$6,000	None	None	\$130,000
Mary Ann B. Wirts	\$124,000	\$6,000	None	None	\$130,000
Independent Directors					
H. Franklin Allen, Ph.D	\$124,000	\$6,000	None	None	\$130,000
William L. Cobb, Jr	\$140,918	\$6,000	None	None	\$146,918
Rebecca E. Duseau	\$125,765	\$6,000	None	None	\$131,765
Andrew Phillips	\$124,954	\$6,000	None	None	\$130,954
Harry Wong	\$134,930	\$6,000	None	None	\$140,930

* Compensation includes reimbursement of out -of-pocket expenses incurred in attending Board meetings, where applicable.

** Includes \$6,000 annual fee for service on the Board of Trustees of Glenmede Portfolios.

Code of Ethics

The Fund and the Advisor have each adopted codes of ethics that permit personnel subject to the codes to invest in securities, including securities that may be purchased or held by the Fund.

Proxy Voting Procedures

The Fund has delegated proxy voting responsibilities to the Advisor, subject to the Board's general oversight. In delegating proxy responsibilities, the Board has directed that proxies be voted consistent with the Fund's and its shareholders best interests and in compliance with all applicable proxy voting rules and regulations. The Advisor has adopted its own proxy voting policies and guidelines for this purpose (collectively, the "Proxy Voting Procedures"). The Proxy Voting Procedures address, among other things, material conflicts of interest that may arise between the interests of the Fund and the interests of the Advisor and its affiliates. The Proxy Voting Procedures are provided in Appendix B of this SAI.

Information regarding how the Fund voted proxies, if any, relating to portfolio securities during the most recent twelve-month period ended June 30 is available, without charge, upon request, by calling 1-800-442-8299, and on the SEC's website at http://www.sec.gov.

INVESTMENT ADVISORY AND OTHER SERVICES

Investment Advisor

GIM, with principal offices at One Liberty Place, 1650 Market Street, Suite 4000, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103, currently serves as the investment advisor to each Portfolio. GIM, a limited partnership, is wholly-owned by Glenmede Trust. As of April 30, 2025, GIM and its affiliated companies had approximately $[\bullet]$ billion in assets in the accounts for which they serve in various capacities, including as executor, trustee or investment advisor.

The Investment Advisory Agreement will continue in effect from year to year provided its continuance is approved annually (i) by the holders of a majority of each Portfolio's outstanding voting securities or by the Board and (ii) by a majority of the Directors who are not parties to each Investment Advisory Agreement or interested persons of any such party. The Investment Advisory Agreement may be terminated on 60 days' written notice by any such party and will terminate automatically if assigned.

The names and position with GIM of the principal executive officers and each director of GIM are as follows. The address for each is c/o GIM, One Liberty Place, 1650 Market Street, Suite 4000, Philadelphia, PA 19103.

Name	Position with GIM
Peter J. Zuleba	Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer
Raj Tewari	Managing Director and Chief Operating Officer
Elizabeth A. Eldridge	Managing Director and President
John F. McCabe	Managing Director and General Counsel

GIM is wholly-owned by Glenmede Trust as both its only limited partner and as the sole owner of GIM's only general partner, Gatepost Partners, LLC. Glenmede Trust, a nationally-chartered trust company, provides fiduciary and investment services to endowment funds, foundations, employee benefit plans and other institutions and individuals. Glenmede Trust is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Glenmede Corporation. Glenmede Trust, Gatepost Partners, LLC and The Glenmede Corporation are located at One Liberty Place, 1650 Market Street, Suite 4000, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103.

The Portfolio pays management fees to the Advisor for its investment advisory services, calculated daily and paid monthly, at the following annual percentage rates of the Portfolio's average daily net assets, as shown in the following table:

Portfolio	Percentage of Average Dailly Net Assets ¹
SMID Core Equity Portfolio – Advisor Shares	0.55%
SMID Core Equity Portfolio – Institutional Shares	0.55%

¹ The Advisor has contractually agreed to waive all or a portion of its investment advisory fees and/or reimburse expenses (excluding Acquired Fund fees and expenses, brokerage commissions, extraordinary items, interest and taxes) to the extent that the total annual operating expenses of the Portfolio's Advisor Shares, as a percentage of such Advisor Shares' average daily net assets, exceed 0.85% of such Portfolio's average daily net assets. The Advisor has also contractually agreed to waive all or a portion of its investment advisory fees and/or reimburse expenses (excluding Acquired Fund fees and expenses, brokerage commissions, extraordinary items, interest and taxes) to the extent that the total annual operating expenses of the Portfolio's Institutional Shares, as a percentage of such Institutional Shares' average daily net assets, exceed 0.65% of such Portfolio's average daily net assets. The Advisor is not entitled to collect or make a claim for waived fees or reimbursed expenses at any time in the future. The Advisor has contractually agreed to these waivers and/or reimbursements until at least [•], 2026. You will be notified if the waivers are discontinued after that date.

The following table sets forth the total management fees paid by the Portfolio over the past three fiscal years.

	Total	Total	Total	Total	Total	Total
	Management	Waived/	Management	Waived/	Management	Waived/
	Fees for	Reimbursed	Fees for	Reimbursed	Fees for	Reimbursed
	Fiscal Year	for Fiscal	Fiscal Year	for Fiscal	Fiscal Year	for Fiscal
	ended	Year ended	ended	Year ended	ended	Year ended
	October 31,					
	2024	2024	2023	2023	2022	2022
SMID Core Equity Portfolio (formerly, Women inLeadership U.S. EquityPortfolio)	\$117,679	\$(66,668)	\$119,341	\$(46,554)	\$135,183	\$(49,722)

Additionally, many shareholders in the Portfolio may be clients of Glenmede Trust or an Affiliate and, as clients, pay fees which vary depending on the capacity in which Glenmede Trust or an Affiliate provides fiduciary and investment services to the particular client. Such services may include personal trust, estate settlement, advisory, and custodian services. For example, for advisory services, Glenmede Trust charges its clients up to 1% on the first \$3 million of principal, 0.75% on the next \$2 million of principal, and 0.50% on the next \$15 million of principal. An additional 0.25% administrative service fee is charged on accounts below \$3 million. For accounts in excess of \$10 million of principal, the fee would be determined by special analysis.

Portfolio Managers

Set forth below is information regarding the individuals identified in the Fund's Prospectus as primarily responsible for the day- to- day management of the Fund's Portfolios ("Portfolio Managers").

As of [•], 2025, the Portfolio Managers were also primarily responsible for the day-to-day management of certain types of other portfolios and/or accounts, as indicated in the table below:

TO BE UPDATED IN A SUBSEQUENT AMENDMENT

				Number of	Total Assets
				Accounts	Managed
				Managed with	with
		Number of		Performance	Performance
Glenmede Investment		Accounts	Total Assets	Based	Based
Management LP	Type of Accounts	Managed	Managed	Advisory Fees	Advisory Fees
Jordan Irving	[]	[]	[]	[]	[]
	[]	[]	[]	[]	[]
	[]	[]	[]	[]	[]
Matthew Shannon, CFA	[]	[]	[]	[]	[]
	[]	[]	[]	[]	[]
	[]	[]	[]	[]	[]

The following table sets forth the dollar range of equity securities beneficially owned by each Portfolio Manager in the Portfolio(s) that he or she manages as of $[\bullet]$, 2025:

Portfolio Manager	Dollar Range of Shares Beneficially Owned
Jordan Irving	[]
Matthew Shannon, CFA	[]

The compensation package for the Portfolio Managers is comprised of a base salary, annual bonus and participation in a long-term equity plan of The Glenmede Corporation. The base salary is based on a combination of factors including the Portfolio Manager's experience, expertise, and competitive market rates. The annual bonus payment is based on a combination of the annual pre-tax financial performance of The Glenmede Corporation, revenue generated from investment management fees and achievement of non-financial strategic goals. The Glenmede Corporation's equity plan provides an opportunity for senior management to build equity in the parent company through options and restricted stock. Participation is based on position, experience and expertise.

The Portfolio Managers may manage other accounts with investment strategies similar to those of the Portfolios of the Fund, which may suggest the potential for conflicts of interests relating to cross trading, allocation of investment opportunities, and aggregation and allocation of trades. In addition, GIM may charge varying fees to different accounts managed by their respective Portfolio Managers. Shareholders should be aware that, as with any group of portfolios and accounts managed by an investment advisor pursuant to varying fee arrangements, including performance or other incentive-based fee arrangements, there is the potential for a conflicts of interest that may result in the Portfolio Managers' favoring those portfolios or accounts with higher or incentive-based fee arrangements. However, the Fund does not anticipate that management by the Portfolio's Portfolio Manager of other accounts with similar investment strategy or different fee arrangement would conflict with management of any of the Portfolios of the Fund because conflicts of interest of this type are minimized by GIM's respective investment management decision-making process and trade allocation policy. In addition, the Fund has adopted policies limiting the circumstances under which cross-trades may be effected between the Fund's Portfolios and another client account.

Transfer Agent, Dividend Paying Agent, Custodian and Administrator

State Street, with its primary place of business located at One Congress Street, Suite 1, Boston, MA 02114, serves as the Fund's transfer agent, dividend paying agent, custodian and administrator.

For its services, State Street is entitled to receive fees from the Fund based on a percentage of the daily net assets of all Portfolios of the Fund, which is allocated to each Portfolio based on its relative net assets, plus transaction charges for certain transactions and out-of-pocket expenses. Fees paid by the Fund to State Street for the past three fiscal years are shown in the following table.

Portfolio	October 31, 2024	October 31, 2023	October 31, 2022
SMID Core Equity Portfolio (formerly, Women in			
Leadership U.S. Equity Portfolio)	\$33,680	\$32,379	\$39,017

State Street is also compensated for its services as the Fund's securities lending agent and short sales lending agent and until December 2010, was also paid an annual fee plus out-of-pocket expenses for the provision of personnel and services related to the Fund's compliance program.

Shareholder Servicing Plan

The Glenmede Fund has adopted an Amended and Restated Shareholder Servicing Plan effective January 1, 1998, and most recently amended effective May 9, 2022 (collectively, the "Plans"), under which the Fund may pay, directly or indirectly, a fee to broker/dealers, banks and other financial institutions (including Glenmede Trust and its affiliates) that are dealers of record or holders of record or which have a servicing relationship ("Servicing Agents") with the record or beneficial owners of shares in the Portfolio. Under the Plans, Servicing Agents provide or arrange to provide shareholder support services to shareholders of the Portfolio. The fee, which is at an annual rate of 0.20% for the Portfolio, is computed monthly and is based on the average daily net assets of the shares beneficially owned by such shareholders. As of the date of this SAI, the Institutional Class of the Portfolio is not subject to the Plans and, accordingly, pay no shareholder servicing fees. All expenses incurred by a class of the Portfolio in connection with the Agreements and the implementation of the Plans shall be borne entirely by the holders of the shares of that class of the particular Portfolio involved and will result in an equivalent increase to the Portfolio's Total Annual Portfolio Operating Expenses. The Advisor and/or Glenmede Trust may pay additional compensation from time to time, out of their assets and not as an additional charge to the Fund, to selected institutions and other persons in connection with selling Portfolio shares and/or servicing of Portfolio shareholders and other accounts managed by the Advisor or Glenmede Trust.

The services provided by or arranged to be provided by the Servicing Agents under the Agreements may include aggregating and processing purchase and redemption requests from shareholders and transmitting purchase and redemption orders to the transfer agent; providing shareholders with a service that invests the assets of their accounts in

shares pursuant to specific or pre-authorized instructions; processing dividend and distribution payments from the Fund on behalf of shareholders; providing information periodically to shareholders showing their positions; arranging for bank wires; responding to shareholders' inquiries concerning their investments; providing sub-accounting with respect to shares beneficially owned by shareholders or the information necessary for sub-accounting; if required by law, forwarding shareholder communications (such as proxies, shareholder reports, annual and semi-annual financial statements and dividend, distribution and tax notices) to shareholders; or providing such other similar services as may be reasonably requested.

Glenmede Trust has entered into Agreements with the Fund and provides or arranges to provide shareholder support services to shareholders of the Portfolio listed below. Glenmede Trust can terminate or modify this arrangement at any time. Shareholder servicing fees paid to Glenmede Trust for the past three fiscal years are shown in the following table.

Glenmede Trust	October 31, 2024	October 31, 2023	October 31, 2022
SMID Core Equity Portfolio – Advisor Shares	\$42,793	\$43,397	\$49,158

Securities Lending

State Street serves as securities lending agent for the Fund's Portfolios, and in that role administers the Portfolios' securities lending program pursuant to the terms of a Securities Lending Authorization Agreement entered into between Fund, on behalf of its Portfolios, and State Street.

For the fiscal year ended October 31, 2024, State Street, acting as securities lending agent, provided the following services to the Fund's Portfolios in connection with the Fund's Portfolios' securities lending activities: (i) locating borrowers among an approved list of prospective borrowers; (ii) monitoring applicable minimum spread requirements, lending limits and the value of the loaned securities and collateral received; (iii) seeking additional collateral, as necessary, from borrowers; (iv) receiving and holding collateral from borrowers, and facilitating the investment and reinvestment of all or substantially all cash collateral in an investment vehicle designated by the Fund's Portfolios; (v) returning collateral to borrowers; (vi) facilitating substitute dividend, interest, and other distribution payments to the Fund's Portfolios from borrowers; (vii) negotiating the terms of each loan of securities, including but not limited to the amount of any loan premium, and monitoring the terms of securities Lending Authorization Agreement; (viii) selecting securities, including amounts (percentages), to be loaned; (ix) maintaining such records as are reasonably necessary to account for loans that are made and the income derived therefrom; and (x) arranging for return of loaned securities to the Fund's Portfolios in accordance with the terms of the Securities Lending Authorization Agreement.

State Street receives as compensation for its services a portion of the amount earned by the Fund's Portfolios for lending securities.

For the fiscal year ended October 31, 2024, the Portfolio's gross income received for securities lending activities, the fees and/or compensation paid by the Glenmede Fund Portfolio for securities lending activities, and the net income earned by the Glenmede Fund Portfolio for securities lending activities, were as follows:

		Fees and/or compensation paid for securities lending activities and related services						
	Gross income from securities lending activities ¹	Fees paid to securities lending agent from a revenue split	Fees paid for any cash collateral management service (including fees deducted from a pooled cash collateral reinvestment vehicle) that are not included in the revenue split	Administrative fees not included in revenue split	Indemnification fee not included in revenue split	Rebate (paid to borrower)	Other fees not included in revenue split	Aggregate fees/ compensation for securities lending activities
SMID Core Equity Portfolio (formerly, Women in Leadership U.S. Equity Portfolio)	\$2.94	\$0.60	\$0	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0	\$0.00	\$0.60

¹ Includes income from cash collateral reinvestment.

Distributor

Shares of the Fund are distributed continuously and are offered without a sales load by Quasar Distributors, LLC ("Quasar Distributors"), 3 Canal Plaza, Suite 100, Portland, ME 04101, pursuant to Distribution Agreements between the Fund and Quasar Distributors. Quasar Distributors receives no fee from the Fund for its distribution services.

Currently, the Advisor pays Quasar Distributors' fees and out-of-pocket expenses for the distribution services Quasar Distributors provides to the Fund's Portfolios.

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

[•], serves as the Fund's independent registered public accounting firm and will audit their financial statements annually.

Counsel

Faegre Drinker Biddle & Reath LLP, One Logan Square, Suite 2000, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103-6996, serves as counsel to the Fund.

Reports

Shareholders will receive tailored shareholder reports that present information for the relevant share class of the Portfolio that they hold. The tailored shareholder reports will be provided to Portfolio shareholders for the annual and semi-annual periods.

PORTFOLIO TRANSACTIONS

The Investment Advisory Agreement authorizes the Advisor to select the brokers or dealers that will execute the purchases and sales of investment securities for the Portfolio and directs the Advisor to use its best efforts to obtain the best available price and most favorable execution with respect to all transactions for the Portfolio. The Advisor may, however, consistent with the interests of the Portfolio, select brokers on the basis of the research, statistical and pricing services they provide to the Portfolio. Information and research received from such brokers will be in addition to, and not in lieu of, the services required to be performed by the Advisor under each Investment Advisory Agreement. A commission paid to such brokers may be higher than that which another qualified broker would have charged for effecting the same transaction, provided that such commissions are paid in compliance with the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and that the Advisor determines in good faith that such commission is reasonable in terms either of the transaction or the overall responsibility of the Advisor to the Portfolio and the Advisor's other clients. The distribution of orders among brokers and the commission rates paid by the Portfolio of the Glenmede Fund are reviewed periodically by the Board.

The Funds are required to identify any securities of their regular brokers or dealers (as defined in Rule 10b-1 under the 1940 Act) or their parents that the Portfolio have acquired during the Funds' most recent fiscal year. As of the fiscal year ended October 31, 2024, the Portfolio held securities of their regular broker/dealers as follows:

Portfolio	Broker	Security Market Value
SMID Core Equity Portfolio (formerly, Women in Leadership)	J.S. Equity	
Portfolio)	Citigroup Gl	lobal Markets \$275,931
During the fiscal years ended October 31, 2024, 2023 and 20	22, the Portfolio paid broke	erage commissions as follows:
Portfolio	October 31, 2024 October	r 31, 2024 October 31, 2024

SMID Core Equity Portfolio (formerly, Women in			
Leadership U.S. Equity Portfolio)	\$18,973	\$22,638	\$28,806

Significant changes in brokerage commissions paid by the Portfolio from year to year have been due to changing asset levels and/or portfolio turnover.

To the extent that the Portfolio effects brokerage transactions with a broker/dealer affiliated directly or indirectly with the Fund, the investment advisers or Quasar Distributors, such transactions will be effected in compliance with applicable law.

Some securities considered for investment by the Portfolio may also be appropriate for other clients served by the Advisor. If the purchase or sale of securities is consistent with the investment policies of the Portfolio and one or more of these other clients served by Advisor and is considered at or about the same time, transactions in such securities will be allocated among the Portfolio and clients in a manner deemed fair and reasonable by Advisor. While in some cases this practice could have a detrimental effect on the price, value or quantity of the security as far as the Portfolio is concerned, in other cases it is believed to be beneficial to the Portfolio.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION CONCERNING TAXES

The following summarizes certain additional tax considerations generally affecting the Portfolio and its shareholders that are not described in the Prospectus. No attempt is made to present a detailed explanation of the tax treatment of the Portfolio or its shareholders, and the discussions here and in the Prospectus are not intended as a substitute for careful tax planning. Potential investors should consult their tax advisers with specific reference to their own tax situations.

The discussions of the Federal tax consequences in the Prospectus and this SAI are based on the Code, and the regulations issued under it, and court decisions and administrative interpretations as in effect on the date of this SAI.

Future legislative or administrative changes or court decisions may significantly alter the statements included herein, and any such changes or decisions may be retroactive.

General

The Portfolio qualified during its last taxable year and intends to continue to qualify as a regulated investment company under Subchapter M of Subtitle A, Chapter 1, of the Code. As a regulated investment company, the Portfolio generally is exempt from Federal income tax on its net investment income and realized capital gains that it distributes to shareholders. To qualify for treatment as a regulated investment company, each of the Fund's Portfolio must meet three important tests each year.

First, the Portfolio must derive with respect to each taxable year at least 90% of its gross income from dividends, interest, certain payments with respect to securities loans, gains from the sale or other disposition of stock or securities or foreign currencies, other income derived with respect to its business of investing in such stock, securities, or currencies or net income derived from interests in qualified publicly traded partnerships.

Second, generally, at the close of each quarter of its taxable year, at least 50% of the value of the Portfolio's assets must consist of cash and cash items, U.S. Government securities, securities of other regulated investment companies and securities of other issuers as to which the Portfolio has not invested more than 5% of the value of its total assets in securities of such issuer and as to which the Portfolio does not hold more than 10% of the outstanding voting securities of the issuer, and no more than 25% of the value of the Portfolio's total assets may be invested in the securities of (1) any one issuer (other than U.S. Government securities and securities of other regulated investment companies), (2) two or more issuers that the Portfolio controls and which are engaged in the same or similar trades or businesses, or (3) one or more qualified publicly traded partnerships.

Third, the Portfolio must distribute an amount equal to at least the sum of 90% of its investment company taxable income (net investment income and the excess of net short-term capital gain over net long-term capital loss) before taking into account any deduction for dividends paid, and 90% of its tax-exempt income, if any, for the year.

The Portfolio intends to comply with these requirements. If the Portfolio were to fail to make sufficient distributions, it could be liable for corporate income tax and for excise tax in respect of the shortfall or, if the shortfall is large enough, the Portfolio could be disqualified as a regulated investment company. If for any taxable year the Portfolio were not to qualify as a regulated investment company, all its taxable income would be subject to tax at regular corporate rates without any deduction for distributions to shareholders. In that event, taxable shareholders would recognize dividend income on distributions to the extent of the Portfolio's current and accumulated earnings and profits and corporate shareholders could be eligible for the dividends-received deduction.

The Code imposes a nondeductible 4% excise tax on regulated investment companies that fail to distribute each year an amount equal to specified percentages of their ordinary taxable income and capital gain net income (excess of capital gains over capital losses). The Portfolio intends to make sufficient distributions or deemed distributions each year to avoid liability for this excise tax.

Taxation of Certain Investments

The tax principles applicable to transactions in certain financial instruments, such as futures contracts and options, that may be engaged in by the Portfolio, and investments in passive foreign investment companies ("PFICs"), are complex and, in some cases, uncertain. Such transactions and investments may cause the Portfolio to recognize taxable income prior to the receipt of cash, thereby requiring the Portfolio to liquidate other positions, or to borrow money, so as to make sufficient distributions to shareholders to avoid corporate-level tax. Moreover, some or all of the taxable income recognized may be ordinary income or short-term capital gain, so that the distributions may be taxable to shareholders as ordinary income.

In addition, in the case of any shares of a PFIC in which the Portfolio invests, the Portfolio may be liable for corporate-level tax on any ultimate gain or distributions on the shares if the Portfolio fails to make an election to recognize income annually during the period of its ownership of the shares.

State and Local Taxes

Although the Portfolio intends to qualify as a regulated investment company and to be relieved of all or substantially all Federal income taxes, depending upon the extent of its activities in states and localities in which its offices are maintained, in which its agents or independent contractors are located, or in which it is otherwise deemed to be conducting business, the Portfolio may be subject to the tax laws of such states or localities.

SHAREHOLDERS SHOULD CONSULT THEIR TAX ADVISOR REGARDING ANY UNITED STATES FEDERAL TAX CONSEQUENCES OF HOLDING SHARES IN THE FUND'S PORTFOLIOS IN LIGHT OF THEIR INDIVIDUAL CIRCUMSTANCES AS WELL AS ANY FOREIGN, STATE AND LOCAL OR OTHER TAX CONSEQUENCES THAT MAY ARISE AS A RESULT OF HOLDING SHARES IN THE PORTFOLIO.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Description of Shares and Voting Rights

The shares of the Portfolio have no preference as to conversion, exchange, dividends, retirement or other rights, and, when issued and paid for as provided in the Prospectus, will be fully paid and non-assessable. The shares of the Portfolio have no pre-emptive rights and do not have cumulative voting rights, which means that the holders of more than 50% of the shares of the Fund voting for the election of its Board members can elect 100% of the Board of that Fund if they choose to do so. A shareholder is entitled to one vote for each full share held (and a fractional vote for each fractional share held), then standing in his or her name on the books of the particular Portfolio. The Fund will not hold annual meetings of shareholders, except as required by the 1940 Act, the next sentence and other applicable law. The Fund has undertaken that its Board will call a meeting of shareholders for the purpose of voting upon the question of removal of a Board member or members if such a meeting is requested in writing by the holders of not less than 10% of the outstanding shares of the particular Portfolio. To the extent required by the undertaking, the particular Portfolio will assist shareholder communication in such matters.

Rule 18f-2 under the 1940 Act provides that any matter required to be submitted to the holders of the outstanding voting securities of an investment company shall not be deemed to have been effectively acted upon unless approved by a majority of the outstanding shares of the Portfolio or class affected by the matter. The Portfolio or class is affected by a matter unless it is clear that the interests of the Portfolio or class in the matter are substantially identical or that the matter does not affect any interest of the Portfolio or class. Under Rule 18f-2, the approval of an investment advisory agreement or any change in a fundamental investment policy would be effectively acted upon with respect to the Portfolio only if approved by a majority of the outstanding shares of the Portfolio. However, Rule 18f-2 also provides that the ratification of independent public accountants and the election of directors or trustees may be effectively acted upon by shareholders of the Fund voting without regard to the Portfolio.

Not with standing any provision of Maryland law requiring a greater vote of the Fund's common stock (or of the shares of the Portfolio or class voting separately as a class) in connection with any corporate action, unless otherwise provided by law (for example by Rule 18f-2 discussed above) or by the Fund's Articles of Amendment and Restatement, the Fund may take or authorize such action upon the favorable vote of the holders of more than 50% of the outstanding common stock of the Fund entitled to vote thereon. Under Maryland law, the Board may liquidate the Portfolio or class without shareholder approval.

Certain Record Holders

To the Fund's knowledge, the following shareholders held of record or beneficially owned 5% or more of the outstanding shares of the indicated Portfolio as of $[\bullet]$, 2025. Any shareholder that owns more than 25% of the outstanding shares of the Portfolio or class may be presumed to "control" (as that term is defined in the 1940 Act) the Portfolio or class. Shareholders controlling the Portfolio or class could have the ability to vote a majority of the shares of the Portfolio or class on any matter requiring approval of shareholders of the Portfolio or class.

[Table to be updated in subsequent amendment]

Portfolio	Name and Address of Owner	Ownership Type	Percentage of Outstanding Shares
SMID Core Equity Portfolio	Lauer & Co. c/o Glenmede Trust Co One Liberty Place 1650 Market ST STE 4000 Philadelphia, PA 19103	Record	[●] %
SMID Core Equity Portfolio	Lauer & Co. c/o Glenmede Trust Co One Liberty Place 1650 Market ST STE 4000 Philadelphia, PA 19103	Record	[●] %
SMID Core Equity Portfolio	Charles Schwab & Co., Inc. Special Custody Account For The Exclusive Benefit Of Customers Attn: Mutual Funds Operations 211 Main Street San Francisco CA 94105-1905	Record	[●] %
SMID Core Equity Portfolio	Omnibus Processing Omnibus Attn Mutual Fund Ops Manager 250 Nicollet Mall, Suite 1400 Minneapolis, MN 55401	Record	[•]%

As of [•], 2025, the Directors and officers of the Fund collectively owned less than 1% of the outstanding shares of each of the Fund's Portfolios.

Dividends and Distributions

The Portfolio's policy is to distribute substantially all of its net investment income, if any, together with any net realized capital gains in the amount and at the times that will avoid both income (including capital gains) taxes on it and the imposition of the Federal excise tax on undistributed income and gains. The amounts of any income dividends or capital gains distributions for the Portfolio cannot be predicted.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Fund's Financial Statements for the SMID Core Equity Portfolio, for the year ended October 31, 2024, and the financial highlights for each of the respective periods presented, appearing in the <u>2024 Annual Financial Statements</u>, and the reports thereon of [•], the Fund's independent registered public accounting firm, also appearing therein, are incorporated by reference in this SAI. No other parts of the 2024 Annual Financial Statements are incorporated herein.

The Fund's Financial Statements for the period ended April 30, 2025, and the financial highlights for each of the respective periods presented, appearing in the [2025 Semi-Annual Financial Statements], are incorporated by reference in this SAI. No other parts of the 2025 Semi-Annual Financial Statements are incorporated herein.

OTHER INFORMATION

The Fund's Prospectuses and this SAI do not contain all the information included in the Registration Statement filed with the SEC under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, with respect to the securities offered by the Prospectuses. Certain portions of the Registration Statement have been omitted from the Prospectuses and this SAI pursuant to the rules and regulations of the SEC. The Registration Statement, including the exhibits filed therewith, may be examined at the office of the SEC in Washington, D.C.

Statements contained in the Prospectuses or in this SAI as to the contents of any contract or other documents referred to are not necessarily complete, and in each instance reference is made to the copy of such contract or other document filed as an exhibit to the Registration Statement of which the Prospectuses and this SAI form a part, each such statement being qualified in all respects by such reference.

The third party marks appearing above are the marks of their respective owners.